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The Edward Simon Lewis House, erroneously known as the Washington Lewis
House, is located on the south side of N Street, S.W., near the corner of
Fourth Street. It was one of the few buildings spared during urban renewal
clearance in southwest in the late 1950's and early 1960's. At that time
the housesattached to the east and west sides of the Lewis House were de~-
molished. Today the early nineteenth century Federal style house is part
of Harbour Square Co-Operative Apartments, and townhouses built in 1964-66
are attached at the east and west.

The Lewis House, probably erected in 1817, is a 2-1/2 story, three-bay-wide
brick building w1th full basement. The 31'1" wide and 39'4" deep house has
a brick and stone foundation. Front (north) walls are laid in Flemish bond
above the line of the first floor. Elsewhere the walls are laid in common
bond. The gable roof covered with tin with standing seams is broken by two
dormers with elliptical pediments on the north and two similar dormers on
the south., These dormers were rebuilt in 1964-66 when a shed dormer con-
necting the dormers of the north facade was removed. The large brick chimney
at the west was also rebuilt in 1964-66. The north and south facades have
a plain brick cornice with bricks set at a 45° angle. At the east and
west are parapet gable ends. The house projects slightly north from the
attached rowhouses at the east and west.

The north and south facades are representative examples of the standard,
early nineteenth century, Washington three-bay-wide facade. The plain brick
walls have a flat planar wall surface unbroken by belt courses. The main
doorway with semicircular fanlight is located in the first story east bay

of the north facade. Windows have brick jack arches and stone sills. Both
first and second story windows have 6/6-lights as do the dormers. The base-
ment has casement windows. The proportions of the facades and the placement
of openings are characteristic of the Adam-Federal style.

Fxterior trim including louvered shutters, door, door trim, and entrance
porch are not original., Most of these features date from the 1964-66 re-
habilitation. At that time the building was painted beige. Originally

the house had a standard side hall plan with two rooms to the west. The
interior had interesting woodwork with corner blocks with rosettes and
damesque mantels. The interior has undergone considerable altération and
in 1964-66 was completely modernized.

33§

SNOILDON3yLSNI



INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate) ) .
{3 Pre-Columbian)| {1 16th Century [J 18th Century [ 20th Cen:\tury
1 15th Century [J 17th Century 19th Century

'SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) ., 1817

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Aboriginal [ Education [] Political L] Urban Planning
[ Prehistoric ] Engineering [C] Religion/Phi- L] Other (Specity)
[ Historic [ Industry losophy

[ Agriculture ] Invention [] Science

X] Architecture ] Landscape [J Sculpture

[ Art Architecture [J Social/Human-

] Commerce O Literature itarian

[ Communications ] Military [C] Theater

[C] Conservation O Music {1 Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated the Edward Simon Lewis

House at 456 N Street, S.W., a Category II Landmark of importance which con-
tributes significantly to the cultural heritage and visual beauty of the
District of Columbia. As well as being representative of an early nineteen-
th century vernacular building type, the house is one of the few older
buildings preserved in the Southwest Urban Renewal Area.

It has had several interesting occupants including "Neighborhood House," an
early settlement house founded there in 1901, and in 1930 Lewis J. Heath
and Ernie Pyle, well known journalists,

The property on which the Lewis House is located was owned by the Greenleaf
Syndicate in 1797 when it was sold with several other lots to John Ashley.
In 1817 title passed to Samuel Eliot, Jr., after court cases to determine
ownership of property following the bankruptcy of the Greenleaf Syndicate.
Eliot, the bookkeeper for the Syndicate and later cashier of the Bank of
Washington, leased the property to Edward Simon Lewis in 1817. It is prob-
able that the house was constructed about this date. Lewis had an option
to purchase the property and in 1819 it was assessed to him.

Traditionally the house is said to have been built by Washington Lewis,
George Washington's nephew. A deed search and a review of assessment re-
cords yield no evidence to verify ownership by Washington Lewis. In 1830

a neighboring lot was assessed to him, City directories list him as living
elsewhere in 1822, 1830, and 1834, City directories for 1822 and 1830 list
Edward Simon Lewis, a clerk in the third auditor's office on the first floor
of the navy department, as living on N Street at Greenleaf's Point. It can
be assumed that he was living in the house and that it was definitely
erected prior to 1822, A search of George Washington's genealogy does not
yield any relationship between him and Edward S. Lewis.

Lewis' title to the property was not clear and in 1821 it, with other pro-
perty owned by Eliot, was conveyed to William Brent, Frederick May, and
John G. McDonald. 1In 1835 they conveyed it to the Bank of Washington., In
1842 the Bank sold it to Joel W. Jones. Jones, a clerk at the arsenal, lived
there from 1842 to 1851 when he sold the house to Samuel Pumphrey. The
property was involved in another court case in 1886 prior to being bought

by Alice Anderson., In 1889 Mary Ellen and Albert E. Carr purchased it.
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“&@:éﬂgyﬁﬁlcance - Edward Simon Lewis House
They are believed to have lived there from 1889 to 1900, From 1900 to 1918

they rented the house. In 1901 the Charles Wellers opened 'Neighborhood
House'" there.

"Neighborhood House," later known as ''Barney Neighborhood House'" is a settle-
ment house founded by the Wellers, Charles F, Weller was secretary of Associated
Charities. The first organized playground in the District of Columbia was
opened in the backyard of 456 N Street. In 1906 the community service organi=-
zation was incorporated and by 1910 it had vacated the Lewis House after
moving down the street to the Duncanson-Cranch House, a Category II Landmark.
Due to urban renewal in the 1950's and 1960's Barney Neighborhood House moved
out of Southwest Washington and is now located at 3118 Sixteenth Street, N.W.

In 1910 the Lewis House resumed its residential function. In 1923 Theo J.
Morgan, an artistymoved into the house, and Helice M, Tracey, later Morgan's
wife, purchased the house in 1928. The house was divided into apartments.
Interesting persons lived there in the 1920's and 1930's, Particularly note-
worthy occupants were Lewis J. Heath, a newspaper correspondent, and Ernie
Pyle, a writer on aviation who later achieved fame as a World War II
correspondent.

In the early 1960's, Mrs. Morgan's last tenant, Captain Lewis C. 0'Rourke,
waged a campaign to preserve the Lewis House from urban renewal demolition,
The fight was successful and today the house is part of Harbour Square Co-
Operative Apartments, a housing project of 1964-66 combining townhouses and
highrises. The building which was rehabilitated in 1964-66, now serves its
original function as a single family dwelling.
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